
 
 

 
 
Committee: 
 

CABINET 

Date: 
 

TUESDAY, 20 MAY 2025 

Venue: 
 

MORECAMBE TOWN HALL 

Time: 6.00 P.M. 
 
 
Lancaster City Council welcomes members of the public to attend meetings. However, space in 
the public gallery is limited to 30 seats due to Fire Regulations. The seats are allocated on a first 
come, first served basis and no standing is permitted. Meetings are livestreamed please click here 
to access the meeting via Teams. 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 
1. Apologies  
 
2. Minutes  
 
 To receive as a correct record the minutes of Cabinet held on Tuesday, 15 April 2025 

(previously circulated).   
  
3. Items of Urgent Business Authorised by the Leader  
 
 To consider any such items authorised by the Leader and to consider where in the 

agenda the item(s) are to be considered.  
  
4. Declarations of Interest  
 
 To receive declarations by Councillors of interests in respect of items on this Agenda.   

Councillors are reminded that, in accordance with the Localism Act 2011, they are 
required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests. (It is a criminal offence not to declare a 
disclosable pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting).   

Whilst not a legal requirement, in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 9 and in the 
interests of clarity and transparency, Councillors should declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests which they have already declared in the Register, at this point in the meeting.   

In accordance with Part B Section 2 of the Code Of Conduct, Councillors are required to 
declare the existence and nature of any other interests as defined in paragraphs 8(1) or 
9(2) of the Code of Conduct.   

  
5. Public Speaking  
 
 To consider any such requests received in accordance with the approved procedure.   
  

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_ZDljMmZkMGEtNGU3Zi00MzgyLTkwMWEtMmE5YTEwYjU5OTgx%40thread.v2/0?context=%7B%22Tid%22%3A%2261b49b28-22c1-4c9b-8830-70288744880e%22%2C%22Oid%22%3A%22dd57637d-970d-498c-8b2c-86d36963754e%22%2C%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3Atrue%2C%22role%22%3A%22a%22%7D&btype=a&role=a
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_ZDljMmZkMGEtNGU3Zi00MzgyLTkwMWEtMmE5YTEwYjU5OTgx%40thread.v2/0?context=%7B%22Tid%22%3A%2261b49b28-22c1-4c9b-8830-70288744880e%22%2C%22Oid%22%3A%22dd57637d-970d-498c-8b2c-86d36963754e%22%2C%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3Atrue%2C%22role%22%3A%22a%22%7D&btype=a&role=a


 

 Reports  
 
6. Government Waste Strategy Delivery (Pages 3 - 13) 
 
 Report of Chief Officer Environment & Place (report published on 14.5.25) 
  
7. AI Growth Zone Collaborative Bid (Pages 14 - 32) 
 
 Report of Chief Executive (report published on 13.5.25) 

 
This report is likely to contain an exempt appendix and the press and public will be 
excluded from the meeting at this point if Cabinet are minded to refer to the information 
within the exempt appendix. 

  
ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS 
 
(i) Membership 

 
 To be determined following Business Council on 12 May 2025 

 
 
(ii) Queries regarding this Agenda 

 
 Please contact Liz Bateson, Democratic Support - email ebateson@lancaster.gov.uk. 

 
(iii) Changes to Membership, substitutions or apologies 

 
 Please contact Democratic Support, telephone 582000, or alternatively email 

democracy@lancaster.gov.uk.   
 
 

MARK DAVIES, 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE, 
TOWN HALL, 
DALTON SQUARE, 
LANCASTER, LA1 1PJ 
 
Published on Monday 12 May 2025.   

 

mailto:democracy@lancaster.gov.uk


 
 

CABINET  

 
 

Government Waste Strategy Delivery 
Tuesday 20th May 2025 

 
Report of Chief Officer – Environment & Place 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To consider and approve a different delivery model for waste and recycling operations, to 
deliver the outcomes required by the governments national waste strategy.  
 

Key Decision X Non-Key Decision  Referral from Cabinet 
Member 

 

Date of notice of forthcoming 
key decision 

22nd April 2025 

This report is public  

 
RECOMMENDATIONS OF Cabinet Member for Environment 
 

(1) In order to deliver the outcomes required by the national waste strategy, that 
Cabinet agree a delivery model for waste collection from 31st March 2026.  

 
(2) Cabinet chooses which of the three extensively modelled options within the report 

to support, taking into account a range of factors including the need to reduce 
waste, increase recycling, provide a service that meets the needs of our residents 
and that is financially viable. 
 

(3) Subject to recommendations 1 and 2, Cabinet approves the capital investment of 
wheelie bin recycling as included in the development section of the Capital 
Programme, with a provisional operation commencement date of 1st April 2026. 
 

1.0 Introduction 

1.1 The Council is required to deliver on the statutory elements of waste and recycling 
collections as outlined in the government waste strategy and as part of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990, and Waste Regulations 2011.  

 

1.2 The Governments Resource and Waste Strategy aims to establish a circular 
economy, where products are used again or for longer through reuse, repair and 
recycling. The strategy outlines a number of key ambitions including doubling 
resource productivity and eliminating avoidable waste by 2050  

 

1.3 The strategy aims to bring forward major changes through three key areas including 
extended producer responsibility (EPR) which requires companies to cover the full 

Page 3 Agenda Item 6



cost of packaging recycling, delivering a consistent collection project from local 
authority’s businesses and organisations for all waste materials, and the introduction 
of a deposit return scheme (DRS) on single use plastic and metal drinks containers.  

 

 

1.4 The national approach to waste management is to build systems and processes 
which work towards a hierarchy of waste management, of prevention, reduce, re-
use, recycle, recover and disposal.  

 

1.5 The national strategy requires authorities to collect the following waste / recycling 
streams - plastic, paper and card, glass, metal, food waste’ garden waste and 
residual 

 

1.6 Business food waste recycling was implemented on 31st March 2025, with domestic 
food waste to be implemented by 31st March 2026 and a deposit return scheme 
(DRS) in 2027. Collection of plastic film from the kerbside is also to be implemented 
by 31st March 2027.   

 

1.7 To assist local authorities in the implementation of the national strategy, government 
have released capital and revenue burden funding. Lancaster City Council received 
one-off capital burden funding of £1.462M which will be used for vehicles and food 
caddies.  A further £0.989M to be received in 2025/26 in respect of revenue burden 
funding for to cover expenditure such as staffing, day to day vehicle costs, marketing 
and education.  

 

2.0 Background 

2.1 The Lancaster district is 222sq/m and covers as far as the borders of South Cumbria, 
North Yorkshire and Wyre. It includes a wide mixture of settlements from very dense 
urban to very sparsely settled rural. Lancaster City Council is the Waste Collection 
Authority (WCA) and Lancashire County Council is the Waste Disposal Authority 
(WDA). 

 

2.2 Lancaster City Council currently collects residual waste fortnightly in 240ltr wheelie 
bins, with paper and card, and plastics and cans being collected separately in 55ltr 
boxes, from 63,649 properties, of which 600 are registered Housing of Multiple 
Occupancy and 340 properties within flats. 

 

2.3 The budgeted net cost for delivering the household waste collection service for 
2025/26 is currently c.£3.8M. 

 

2.4 Garden Waste is collected on a fortnightly subscription basis in 240ltr wheelie bins. 
In the 2024/2025 financial year, this generated £1.094M in income which assists 
significantly in offsetting the total cost of the wider service.  The garden waste 
delivery model will not be changed as a result of this report.  

 

2.5 Lancaster City Council currently collects around 9,000 tonnes of recycling per annum 
and has a recycling rate of 36%, which is in the bottom quartile both nationally and 
regionally. This represents a steady decline from a peak of 41% in 2015/16. In 
comparison, the district’s current residual waste collection is around 32,000 tonnes, 
equating to around 538kg per household, which again is in the bottom quartile both 

Page 4



nationally and regionally. Under the new government strategy, a baseline recycling 
target of 60% has been set by 2035 with an ambition to half all residual waste sent 
to landfill or incineration by 2042.  

 

2.6 The district’s current contamination rate for recycling is 10.6%. Incidents where the 
contamination rate exceed trigger levels include dense plastics, film, sanitary, textile 
and electrical components within the recycling waste streams. In the Lancashire 12 
region, the overall recycling rate for 2022/23 stood at 42.8%. Blackburn with Darwen 
and Pendle recorded the lowest rates at 29.6%, while Chorley led with 46%, closely 
followed by South Ribble at 45.6%. Blackpool also performed well, achieving a 
recycling rate of 45.5%. Comparatively, the North West average was 45.3%, while 
the national average for England stood at 41.7%. 

 

2.7 Following the announcements by government, domestic food waste recycling is 
mandated to be collected weekly from 31st March 2026 as a driver to lower residual 
waste and increase recycling rates nationally. The strategies main focus outlines the 
ambition to work towards a circular economy and zero waste.  

 

2.8 In anticipation for the implementation of the strategy, work has been undertaken in 
the form of partnership with County Council to undertake a full scale review of waste 
management to understand the total cost of waste from generation to disposal. The 
primary aim of this work was to understand the total costs of both collection and 
disposal. The report established that the Lancaster district direct residual collection 
costs were £22.18 per property, per year, due to the vast geographical area. 
Recycling collection costs per property ranged from £8.35 to £27.19 per annum for 
similar reasons. By undertaking this study and collaboration with county these 
metrics will help to identify areas of improvement contributing to improved 
performance through shared knowledge and best practise.  

 

2.9 Internal surveys on the Geographic Information System (GIS) collated patterns of 
residual and recycling rates in Lower Super Output Areas (LSOA) across out district 
to better understand which approach works best for residents.   

 

2.10 Other studies included a comprehensive waste composition audit to help understand 
the amount of food waste product within the districts residual stream, that can be 
diverted into food waste recycling. This assisted in gaining thorough understanding 
of behaviour across the five main demographics across the district. This report 
highlighted that over 19% of the districts residual waste could be diverted through 
current recycling channels. The report also identified that 28% by weight could be 
recycled through a dedicated food waste recycling collection.  

 

2.11 A fully funded study was undertaken with WRAP (Waste & Resources Action 
Programme) to deliver a baseline study of our current collection methods in relation 
to cost, fleet requirements and workforce capacity. Following this, several future 
models were developed in order to forecast the future costs and efficiencies 
associated with variations in collection frequency, fleet variations and receptacle 
capacity.   

 

2.12 GIS analysis and route optimisation works have been undertaken of all future 
modelling options to further reinforce the most effective and efficient delivery model 
which support residents needed, increased recycling targets and the financial 
challenges faced by the authority  

Page 5



 

2.13 The internal and external analysis has identified a number of options for 
consideration and eliminated things which will not work. This work offers confidence 
in the success of the options outlined within the report.  Following the detailed works 
and modelling, a capital investment business case relating to moving to wheelie bin 
recycling provision has been submitted as part of the budget setting process for 
2025/26 financial year. Investment in this area for residents will allow for operational 
planning improvements, flexibility of service, improved health of our staff (eg less 
Musculo-skeletal injuries), and a standardisation of vehicles. It is believed that 
wheelie bin provision investment will lead to a reduction in both short term and long 
term sickness within the service. 

  

2.14 Moving to wheelie bin recycling will also allow for standardisation of fleet, which is 
expected to result in a capital saving of approximately £0.040M per vehicle compared 
with the current specification.  This could affect up to 10 refuse collection vehicles 
(from all our stock or on the 25/26 replacement programme of 13 vehicles).  

 

2.15 Following the options appraisal works, the options 1 and 2 outlined within section 
four of this report, are forecast to increase the districts recycling rates by 10-20% 
with consistent education and enforcement activity. At present it is too early to offer 
more specific targets until implementation has taken place and further analysis can 
take place.  

 

2.16 Given the nature of our district, alternative service arrangements for those most in 
need, including medical and assisted collections, will continue to be offered.  

 

2.17 Alternative arrangement consideration will also be given to those who do not have 
space for wheelie bins, and communal collection points will continue to be 
considered for developments such as housing of multiple occupancy.  

 

2.18 Once implemented, work will continue to further optimise and strive for financial 
savings, as we gain more detailed insight regarding food recycling participation rates 
and the impact deposit return scheme (DRS) will have on kerbside collections when 
it is introduced in 2027.  

 

2.19 A fully worked up communications strategy is drawn up between Lancashire County 
Council and all districts within the region to ensure messaging is continuous and wide 
reaching to inform our residents through various channels.  Campaign objectives will 
aim to raise awareness, drive behaviour change and build confidence in the changes 
being made. The strategy will deliver consistency across the County whilst being 
flexible enough to all district authorities to personalise aspects to reflect local matters.  

 

2.20 Measuring the impact of implementation to allow for ongoing adjustment and 
refinement will be key. Bespoke data systems will be used to provide new key 
performance indications around percentage reduction in residual waste, increased 
tonnage of recyclable materials and participation rates in food waste recycling. These 
metrics will allow for continuous adjustments to the operations ensuring that targets 
are met across the district. 

 

 

  

Page 6



3.0 Food Waste Collection 

3.1 As detailed in section 1.6 of the report, the weekly collection of domestic food waste 
must be introduced across the whole district by 31st March 2026. 

 

3.2 Due to supplier lead-in times, work has already begun in preparation for the 
introduction of food waste recycling.  Thirteen districts within Lancashire have 
undertaken joint procurement of 7 litre kitchen caddies and 23 litre food caddies in 
anticipation for the changes, which has offered savings in respect of equipment and 
delivery costs.  Options for further joint procurement opportunities surrounding 
vehicles will be explored over the coming months once the specifications have been 
finalised. 

 

3.3 An internal project team has been established to calculate the number of teams 
required to deliver proposed collection schedules and the initial estimates are 7 
teams will be required.  A HGV vehicle will be required for each team and an 
additional vehicle will be required to supplement downtime needed for regular vehicle 
checks and respective maintenance.  Latest specification estimates expect the 
vehicles to cost approx. of £0.0150M each. 

 

3.4 Each team will require one vehicle, one driver and two refuse collector and 
associated cover for annual leave, sickness, training etc.  For 7 teams it is estimated 
that an additional 8 vehicles, 11 drivers and 22 loaders will be required to deliver the 
service. 

 

4.0 Wheelie-Bin Recycling 

4.1 As detailed in section 2.12 of the report, a capital investment business case relating 
to moving to wheelie bin recycling provision has been submitted as part of the budget 
setting process for 2025/26 financial year.  This is included within the ‘Schemes 
Under Development’ section of the Capital Programme approved by Council on 26 
February 2025. 

 

4.2 The capital amount earmarked for purchase costs and delivery is £2.208M.  The 
annual revenue costs for minimum revenue provision (MRP) and borrowing costs is 
£0.196M and this has been included in the future projections of the approved general 
fund revenue budget. 

 

4.3 By introducing wheelie bin recycling throughout a majority of the district, this will allow 
for alternative collection cycles to be considered.  The options appraisal section of 
this report considers 3 selected alternate methods and details the advantages and 
disadvantages of each method. 

 

4.4 Further consideration of the financial costs of each option are included within the 
financial implications section of the report.  

 

 

5.0 Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment) 

 

5.1 Each option presented in the report has been investigated, modelled and forecast 

Page 7



based through a number of pieces of work with a focus on a solution that offers an 
increase in recycling rate, operational efficiency, resident participation increase and 
financial benefit.  

 

5.2 Option 1 would move the districts residual collection frequency to three weekly at the 
same time as introducing weekly food waste recycling. Wheelie bin investment could 
offer alternate fortnightly recycling frequencies for residents whilst offering increased 
capacity to recycle greater volumes. This option offers a potential financial saving 
with the reduction of fleet vehicles and associated costs. Modelling forecasts an 
increase in recycling rate, but offers significant risk in regard to resident 
understanding and participation, and also regarding operational planning issues as 
it offers its complexities. This option, due to its complexities, offers risk with the 
number of missed, or none presented bins likely to increase at which point this would 
involve cost increases on collection.  

 

5.3 Option 2 would see the district having waste frequencies that would include three 
weekly collections of residual and recycling streams, with weekly food waste 
recycling. It is modelled on wheelie bin recycling investment to increase capacity and 
recycling rate. It is understood that this option will offer a higher recycling rate for the 
district, offers operational planning benefits and is easy to understand for the 
resident. The cost of this option is similar to current operations and therefore doesn’t 
offer a financial efficiency.  

 

5.4 Option 3 represents consideration to introduce food waste recycling weekly as 
mandated by government, but keep other collection methods as they are now, 
including boxes for recycling. Whilst this option will reduce the burden on the capital 
investment programme, it will stifle the district’s ability to increase its recycling rate, 
offer no incentive for residents to participate in food waste recycling and will work 
against the authorities’ priorities on zero waste to landfill.  

 

 

 Option 1: Three weekly 
residual, alternate recycling (4 
weekly per stream), plus food 
waste 
 
Residual bin – 3 weekly 
DMR¹ bin – 4 weekly 
Paper bin – 4 weekly  
Food caddy - weekly 
 

Option 2: Three weekly 
residual, three weekly 
recycling per stream, plus 
food waste 
 
Residual bin – 3 weekly 
DMR¹ bin – 3 weekly 
Paper bin – 3 weekly  
Food caddy - weekly 
 

Option 3: Keep current 
collection method plus 
food waste 
 
 
Residual bin – 2 weekly 
DMR¹ box – 2 weekly 
Paper box – 2 weekly  
Food caddy - weekly 
 

Advantages  Potential cost savings with 
a forecasted reduction of 1 
vehicle 

 Increase in recycling rate 

 Increase in recycling 
rate versus current and 
small increase in rate  

 Provide consistent 
collection frequency 
across all streams 

 Provides a more 
operationally 
straightforward service 

 No resident 
interruptions to 
service 

 Calendars remain the 
same 

 Crew familiar with 
current collection 
system 

 No system updates 

Page 8



 Reduction in missed 
bins 

 May help with crew 
familiarity doing same 
rounds each week  

 Easier to understand for 
residents 

required 
 

Disadvantages 
 Complex calendar system 

(every other week requires 
multiple streams to be 
presented at kerbside) 

 Operational challenges 
associated with complex 
service configuration 

 System updates required 

 Introduction of new 
calendars 

 Resident communication 
initiative required 

 No Cost savings 

 System updates 
required 

 Introduction of new 
calendars 

 Resident 
communication initiative 
required 

 Difficult to increase 
recycling rate with 
status-quo 

 No cost savings 

 Lower participation 
rate in food waste 
recycling 

 Works against council 
priorities 

 

Risks 
 Exponential increase in 

missed bin reports 

 Deterioration of resident 
perception 

 Impact on program 
adoption through negative 
feedback 

 Residents may see change 
in frequency as negative 

 Introduction of changes 
may lead to small rise in 
missed bins until 
program is settled in 

 Residents may see 
change in frequency as 
negative 

 Funding implications 
with no increase in 
recycling rate 

 

¹ DMR - Dry Mixed Recycling (glass, plastic and cans) 

 

6.0 Officer Preferred Option (and comments) 

 

6.1 The options available to the Council are outlined in paragraphs 5.2 to 5.4 of the report 
and all offer advantages and disadvantages. Any decision moving forward should 
consider a balanced approach to residents whilst taking into account the national 
strategy, financial position of the authority and operational efficiency. 

  

Option 2 is the officer preferred option – to approve the proposed policy to move 
towards designated weekly food waste recycling, three weekly residual waste 
collections and three weekly recycling of current streams.  It is felt that this will  
contribute to a smoother operation and be kinder to the public in knowing what is 
required on their behalf.  It is anticipated that recycling rates will increase and 
therefore contribute to the national strategy. 

 

7.0 Details of Consultation  

 

Page 9



7.1 As part of the phase one fit for future projects a Waste Strategy Group was set up 
between officers and Councillors to review the services current operations and 
consider options available for the future of waste services. This group will continue 
to meet through the 2025/26 financial year to oversee implementation of changes 
and to identify where possible efficiencies and savings can be identified.  

 

8.0  Conclusion 

 

8.1 Should the preferred option be approved, Council services will be able to start the 
implementation work stream as set out in the report and look to articulate the 
changes to residents.  

 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK 
 
This report assists the authority in complying with the national policy framework as set out 
within the Government Waste Strategy  
 
There is also clear links to the Corporate Priorities 2024-2027 – including ambitions 1.5 
reducing waste, 3.2 quality open space, 4.1 value for money, 4.3 investing in our skills and 
facilities, 4.5 innovative public service and 4.6 openness  
 
 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Health & Safety, Equality & Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, HR, 
Sustainability and Rural Proofing) 

The changes which need to be implemented due to the government waste strategy highlight 
positive and challenging outcomes. Delivering food waste recycling reduces landfill or 
incineration needs and moves towards more sustainable disposal methods such as 
composting or anaerobic digestion. Socially, these practices highlight sustainable practices 
and community awareness around the generation of waste.  

Challenges to the delivery of the change include logistical management of the service and 
robust infrastructure to support the community. This has been identified and will be mitigated 
by engagement and working with partners and stakeholders to maximise the benefits. 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
Amendment to waste collection is necessitated by the need for weekly separate food collection 
from 31 March 2026. 
 
The Environmental Protection Act 1990 is the primary Act concerned with residential waste 
collection and recycling. S45A of the 1990 Act was removed by the Environment Act 2021 and 
substituted with a new s45A, 45AZA-45AZG. The new provision makes it clear under no 
circumstances may certain dry waste streams (glass, metal, plastic, paper and card) may be 
collected mixed with other recyclable waste streams (food waste). This is to minimise or 
prevent contamination of dry recyclable materials by food or garden waste. It also makes it 
mandatory that food waste must be collected from households at least once a week. 
 
Advice should be taken from the Council’s procurement and legal team on any 
procurement/contractual matter arising from Cabinet’s decision on this matter. 

Page 10



 
 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

As detailed in the report, the Council has received £1.462M in respect of capital burden 
funding to be used towards the implementation of weekly food waste collection within the 
district.  An appraisal of how the service will operate has been undertaken by an internal 
project team and it is estimated that 7 teams will need to be established to fulfil the delivery 
needs of the service.  The capital expenditure requirement is as follows :- 

 Food Caddies £0.293M 
 New Vehicles (estimate) £1.200M 

The amounts listed result in a shortfall of the government funding received by £0.031M and 
will need to be found from compensating savings (see below). 

The Council has also been notified that it will receive a transitional resource grant payment of 
£359,936 under Section 31 of the Local Government Act 2003.  It is intended to cover the 
following :- 

 Officer time for procuring food waste containers and vehicles 

 Communicating service changes with residents 

 Distributing food waste containers to households 

 Developing and optimising new food waste collection rounds 

 Project management tasks associated with a service change of this nature 

The project team have considered this transitional resource and are working towards an 18 
month programme to deliver the necessary outputs. 

With regard to ongoing revenue, the Council has received an initial allocation of £0.989M from 
the government (pEPR payment) for the weekly collection food waste.  An amount of £0.225M 
has been included within the approved 2025/26 revenue budget to assist in being ready to 
deliver the service by 31 March 2026.  It has been assumed that the annual pEPR amount will 
continue at a similar level and uplifted for annual inflation. 

By introducing 7 rounds the estimated full year revenue costs, effective from 1st April 2026 are 
as follows :- 

 Salary Costs £1.219M 
 Vehicles £0.100M 
 Training, Education & Marketing £0.025M 
 Sundry Expenditure (including PPE) £0.015M 

 TOTAL £1.359M 

Therefore, it is deemed that the annual pEPR payment is deemed insufficient to cover the 
annual revenue costs of providing the service by c.£0.350M annually.  The additional cost will 
add further pressure to the general fund structural deficit and will need to be built into future 
budget rounds. 

The introduction of wheelie bin recycling within the district provides a number of advantages 
to service delivery. 

There are potential capital savings of c.£0.040M per vehicle due to a new specification of 
vehicle being required.  This is relevant for 8 vehicles within the current fleet of which 5 are 
due to be replaced this year (2025/26) and these savings could initially be used to offset the 
capital overspend as detailed above.  The vehicles have an estimated useful life of 6 years so 
the annual revenue savings could amount to £0.008M per vehicle in minimum revenue 
provision (MRP) and borrowing costs. 

Page 11



The capital amount earmarked for purchase costs and delivery is £2.208M.  The annual 
revenue costs for MRP and borrowing costs is £0.196M and this has been included in the 
future projections of the approved general fund revenue budget.  Both Options 1 and 2 would 
incur the afore mentioned charges. 

Option 1 would reduce the number of rounds by 1 and subsequently provide both capital and 
revenue financial savings.  These are estimated to be c.£0.300M capital and £0.110M revenue 
due to the loss of 1 driver and 2 refuse collectors which would be managed through the 
reducing the resources required to deliver food waste collection. Further annual revenue 
savings or £0.062M in respect of MRP and borrowing costs would also be achievable 

Options 2 and 3 are estimated to be cost neutral as the same number of rounds are required 
to deliver the service. 

However, it must be noted that options 1 and 3 could result in increased back-office costs due 
to the complex nature of how the rounds will be formulated.  These costs are unquantifiable 
at this point in time. 

 

 

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Human Resources: 

 operational delivery will require recruitment in both HGV and Loader positions. Service HRBP 
is currently working with service to look at internal learning and development opportunities for 
existing staff, prior to external recruitment  

Information Services: 

Operational support will be needed to the purchasing and setting up of digital provision 
including phones, emails and in cab devices  

Property: 

No resource implications identified at this time  

Open Spaces: 

No resource implications identified at this time  

 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The paper splits the Council’s response to the Government Waste Strategy obligations into 2 
areas.  
 
Food Waste Collection 
Currently the government requires the Council to offer the opportunity to every household in 
the District by March 2026, to achieve this requires a full collection rollout. As highlighted within 
the Financial Implications, although funding will be received via the pEPR grant it is insufficient 
to cover the annual revenue costs of providing the service by approximately £0.350M per 
annum. This represents a further pressure on the general fund and will need to be built into 
future budget rounds. The Service will look to refine the scheme and manage efficiencies 
through initiatives such as revised route planning once take up is known, public education etc. 
This will however require user and operational data which will only be known once the scheme 
has matured over time. Given the reputational risk to the Council from Government and 
residents the options available to comply with the requirements are limited. 
 
Recycling 

Page 12



There paper does however provide 2 options in regard to the collection of recycling material.  

 The introduction of three weekly residual, weekly recycling per stream, plus food waste 
(Officers Preferred Option) or  

 Retain the current method plus additional food waste.  
 
Although the officer’s preferred option does incur significant Capital Expenditure around the 
purchase of wheelie bins it provides the opportunity to align with other Council’s operational 
processes and should aid a smooth transition. 
 
The operational advantages as well as the ease and clarity to residents needs to be 
considered against the additional capital and revenue costs noting that the service will seek 
to refine the operating model as the scheme matures. 

 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

The report sets out the legal framework being introduced. The legislation places a new 
obligation on the council in relation to the collection of food waste. The options enable the 
council to manage this new obligation appropriately  

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 

Contact Officer: Will Griffith  
Telephone:  01524 582841 
E-mail: wgriffith@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref:  

 

Page 13



 
 

CABINET  

 
 

AI Growth Zone Collaborative bid 
May 20th 2025 

 
Report of Chief Executive 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To seek Cabinet’s support for a collaborative bid to Government for an AI Growth Zone in the 
Lancaster District. 
 

Key Decision  Non-Key Decision x Referral from Cabinet 
Member 

 

Date of notice of forthcoming 
key decision 

NA 

This report is public  
 
APPENDIX B is exempt 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS OF Cllr Hamilton- Cox 

(1) That Cabinet supports Lancaster City Council’s involvement in the 
development of a proposal for an AI growth zone in our District. 

1.0 Introduction 

1.1 The UK government is accelerating efforts to build the infrastructure needed 
to support AI growth. AI Growth Zones will unlock investment in AI-enabled 
data centres and support infrastructure by improving access to power and 
providing planning support. This will help drive innovation, create high-skilled 
jobs, and strengthen the UK’s position as a leader in AI. 

 

1.2 Applications are invited from: 

 

 regional and local authorities in England, Scotland, Wales and Northern 
Ireland, including city and regional mayors 

 industry including data centre developers and energy firms 

1.3 This Government initiative aligns with the Council’s aim for a ‘An inclusive and 
Prosperous Local Economy’ and the outcomes of sustainable 
innovation, sustainable skills and investment and regeneration. 

 

 

Page 14Agenda Item 7



2.0 Proposal Details 

2.1 There is considerable interest in submitting a collaborative bid for an AI 
Growth Zone to be located around the Imperial Road site in Heysham.  

 

2.2 Earlier in the year a collaboration of partners including, Lancaster City 
Council, Lancaster University, AQL, Northern Reach, Purple Renewables and 
Bay Fusion submitted a proposal to Government to ensure that before 
submitting a forma expression of interest we were clear Government would 
be interested. This was supported by the MP and several other partners. 

 

2.3 From this it was clear that we do meet the Government’s criteria which is set 
out in Appendix A.  

 

2.4 Based on this it is proposed that a collaborative proposal is prepared as set 
out in the Appendix A. 

 

2.5 Some capacity will be required to ensure the proposal meets the required 
criteria. Resource will be required for this. The Council will need to contribute 
towards this from within existing budgets. 

 

2.6 Appendix B (exempt) contains outline technical details that will underpin the 
proposal 

3.0 Details of Consultation  

3.1 At this stage all that is being submitted is a proposal. Depending on the 
outcome consultation will take place as appropriate. 

4.0 Options and Options Analysis  

 

4.1 Supporting the proposal aligns with the Council Plan, supports our local 
economy and shows leadership  in looking to take advantage of an 
opportunity  for our District and the wider region. 

 

4.2 Not supporting the proposal will forgo our opportunity to lead for our 
communities and collaborate with a range of partners. 

 

 

5.0 Officer Preferred Option (and comments) 

5.1 That Lancaster City Council continues to work with partners to submit a 
collaborative proposal 

 RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK 
 
As outlined in the report 
 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Health & Safety, Equality & Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, HR, 
Sustainability and Rural Proofing) 

At this stage there is nothing specific to report 

Page 15



 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

There are legal implications for the use and development of Council land for AI related 
infrastructure. Should the proposal be successful the Council will need to carry out due 
diligence in relation to the use of land for development (taking appropriate legal advice). The 
Council will also need to consider issues such as environmental constrains/clean up 
costs/liability, ecology, planning, building control, subsidy control and procurement.  

Legal services (with external support where needed) will need to assist on any development 
contracts or land transfers/acquisition.  

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

Any officer time required to support and develop the collaborative bid, can initially be met from 
existing resources. 

Should any further costs arise then in-house savings would be sought in the first instance and 
if necessary a request to utilise general fund reserves bid would be required, subject to the 
correct governance procedures being complied with. 

 

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Human Resources: 

NA 

Information Services: 

NA 

Property: 

See Appendix B 

Open Spaces: 

NA 

 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

The S151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments to add. 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments to add. 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

[Click here and type list of background 
papers. NOTE: ALL listed background papers 
MUST be sent to Democratic Services for 
publication on the Council's website. ] 

Contact Officer: Mark Davies 
Telephone:  01524 58 
E-mail: mdavies@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref: [Click here and type Ref, if applicable] 

 
 
 
 

Page 16



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix A 

Criteria for applicants 

 There are 4 sections that each AIGZ application will be considered 
against: 

 Technical feasibility 

 Delivery feasibility 

 Local impact 

 Level of government support requested 

1. Technical feasibility (criteria) 

 This covers: 

 Power availability 

 Water availability and discharge 

 Land availability and area information 

 Planning 

 Connectivity 

Power availability 
 Sites must demonstrate access to at least 500MW of power capacity by 
2030. 

 To demonstrate this, applicants must provide the following: 

Page 17

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/ai-growth-zones/ai-growth-zones-open-for-applications#technical-feasibility
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/ai-growth-zones/ai-growth-zones-open-for-applications#delivery-feasibility
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/ai-growth-zones/ai-growth-zones-open-for-applications#local-impact
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/ai-growth-zones/ai-growth-zones-open-for-applications#government-support-requested


 A confirmation letter from National Grid, the National Energy System 
Operator (NESO) (or the relevant transmission operator) setting out 
a secured connection agreement or formally allocated capacity, or 

 A credible behind-the-meter solution supported by detailed technical 
documentation (e.g. feasibility studies, supplier Memorandum of 
Understandings (MoUs), permitting timelines). 

 While 500MW by 2030 is the minimum requirement, sites with greater 
capacity will be viewed favourably. 

Water availability and discharge 
 Sites must demonstrate sufficient access to water to support at least 
500MW of AI infrastructure. 

 To demonstrate this, applicants must provide written confirmation 
from the relevant local water supplier. This written confirmation should 
include: 

 Volumes required and available 

 Infrastructure requirements or constraints 

 Timelines for delivery 

 Applicants should also set out plans for managing wastewater 
discharges, including any necessary permits, infrastructure requirements, and 
engagement with the relevant regulatory bodies. 

Land availability and area information 
 Sites must have a minimum of 100 acres of land available for the 
construction of AI infrastructure by 2028. 

 To demonstrate this, applicants must provide the following: 

 Title deeds or equivalent proof of ownership/control 

 Site plan/map clearly delineating developable land 

 Where land is not currently developable, a credible and time-bound 
remediation or enabling works plan, including budget, timeline, and 
responsible party to enable works by 2028 

 While 100 acres is the minimum requirement, sites with greater land 
availability will be viewed favourably, particularly where this supports long-
term scalability and cluster development. 

 Note: A remediation plan will be considered more credible if it is agreed 
by the relevant environmental regulator (e.g., the Environment Agency in 
England). 

Planning 

Page 18



 Sites must either have existing planning permission, or a robust and 
deliverable plan to secure full planning consent by 2028. 

 To demonstrate this, applicants must provide the following: 

 A copy of existing planning consent covering the intended use, or 

 A planning pathway document, including: 
 

 Site status in the Local Plan 

 Pre-application and consultation status 

 Projected submission and decision timeline 

 Risks to delivery and mitigation plan 

 Please also include any other relevant information about the area, such 
as: 

 Relevant economic status (e.g., freeports, investment zones) 

 Relevant local planning authority 

 Note: Overlaps with Freeports or Investment Zones will be considered 
on a case-by-case basis. Sites that fall within these areas must demonstrate 
clear complementarity. 

Connectivity 
 Sites with strong, reliable, and readily available digital connectivity will 
be viewed favourably (fibre and mobile). 

 Applicants are encouraged to provide the following as evidence: 

 Network operator letter confirmation of existing fibre and mobile 
coverage 

 Network operator letter on plans to extend or upgrade connectivity 

 Any relevant commercial or government partnerships 

2. Delivery feasibility (criteria) 

 This covers: 

 Regional power impact 

 Delivery team and execution 

 Local support 

Regional power impact 
 Sites located in areas with lower existing grid congestion will be viewed 
favourably, as they are more likely to support balanced management of 
overall system demand and supply. 

Page 19



 Applicants are encouraged to provide the following as evidence: 

 a map of local transmission network capacity, or 

 a statement from their network operator, to demonstrate low 
congestion or headroom availability. 

Delivery team and execution 
 Applicants must provide initial proposals for their delivery team and 
execution approach. 

 To demonstrate this, applicants must provide the following: 

 Team structure and key personnel 

 Role and responsibilities 

 Subcontractor and delivery partner integration 

 Resourcing and continuity plan 

 Risk and contingency planning 

Local support 
 Applicants must provide evidence of support from relevant local 
authorities and  a willingness to work collaboratively with government and 
partners to meet ambitious delivery timelines. 

 To demonstrate this, applicants must provide the following: 

 Letters of support from the relevant local authority/authorities 

 Evidence of engagement with local stakeholders (e.g. LEPs, 
development corporations) 

 An outline of how the applicant will work with central and local 
government to meet tight delivery timelines 

3. Local impact (criteria) 

 This covers: 

 Regional ecosystem impact and development plans 

 Local benefits 

 Low carbon energy solutions 

Regional ecosystem impact and development plans 
 Sites that can demonstrate how an AI Growth Zone would enhance the 
surrounding regional innovation ecosystem - including R&D capacity, 
industrial clusters, academic partnerships and AI employment and business - 
will be viewed favourably. 

Page 20



 Proposals should set out how the development would strengthen the 
UK’s wider AI economy, build on existing regional strengths, and align with 
long-term local growth strategies. 

 Applicants are encouraged to provide the following as evidence: 

 Existing or planned partnerships with universities or Registered 
Training Organisation (RTOs) 

 Proximity to AI-relevant clusters (e.g. robotics, semiconductors) 

 Links to local innovation funding or accelerator programmes 

 Alignment with published regional development plans or economic 
strategies 

Local benefits 
 Sites that can demonstrate clear and measurable benefits to the local 
community will be viewed favourably. 

 These may include: 

 job creation 

 investment in local infrastructure or community assets 

 delivery of training and education programmes for local residents, 
and 

 the regeneration of brownfield or underused land 

 In assessing local benefits, government may also consider whether the 
proposed AIGZ displaces or limits other forms of strategically important 
development on or around the site. 

 Applicants are encouraged to provide the following as evidence: 

 Forecast job creation (construction and operational) 

 Commitments to local skills, training, or education delivery 

 Planned investment in community infrastructure or assets 

 Plans for regeneration of brownfield or underused sites 

Low carbon energy solutions 
 Sites located near land suitable for the development of low-carbon 
power generation and energy storage infrastructure will be viewed favourably. 

 Applicants are encouraged to provide the following as evidence: 

 Existing or planned low carbon generation in the area 

 Available land parcels for low-carbon energy solutions 

 Evidence of engagement with low-carbon energy solutions providers 

Page 21



4. Level of government support requested (criteria) 

 Applicants should clearly set out any specific asks of government that 
would be required to make the proposed AIGZ viable - particularly where 
these relate to meeting minimum technical requirements or accelerating 
delivery within the required timeframe. 

 This should include: 

 Details of the support requested (e.g. regulatory flexibility, planning 
assistance, coordination with agencies) 

 The specific barriers the ask is intended to address 

 Delivery timelines that would be unlocked with this support 

 Note: government’s ability to accelerate power connection timelines is 
extremely limited. Sites that rely primarily on government intervention to 
secure or bring forward a grid connection date by a considerable margin are 
unlikely to be viable. 

How to apply  

 You can submit an application at any time 
to aigrowthzones@dsit.gov.uk. Your application should clearly state how you 
meet the criteria and include supporting evidence. 

 Apply by the end of May 2025 if you wish to be chosen as 
an AI Growth Zone in the summer of 2025. 

 After 1 June 2025, the application process will stay open indefinitely.   

 If you are not selected as an AI Growth Zone in summer 2025 you can 
apply again. If you have applied before, and the details of your 
application have changed substantially, please contact the AI Growth Zone 
team at aigrowthzones@dsit.gov.uk. 

 

Page 22

mailto:aigrowthzones@dsit.gov.uk
mailto:aigrowthzones@dsit.gov.uk


Document is Restricted

Page 23
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	6 Government Waste Strategy Delivery
	7 AI Growth Zone Collaborative Bid
	APPENDIX B EXEMPT Lancaster City Council - AIGZ EOI Main Response


